
 

1 
 

AGENDA 
 

Mason Transit Authority Board 
Regular Meeting 

March 17, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
Mason Transit Authority 

to be held at the following location: 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

OPENING PROTOCOL 
CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 

1. Pg. 003: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the February 18, 2020 
     MTA regular Board meeting. 
2. Pg. 006: Financial Reports:  March, 2020 
3. Pg. 015: Check Approval: February 13 – March 11, 2020 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: [None] 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Pg. 024: Mason Transit’s Bus Cleaning Schedule in Response to COVID-19 – 
     DISCUSSION  (Marshall) 
2. Pg. 025: Change Orders #3,4 and 5 – Roundabout Project – INFORMATIONAL 
    (Danette) 
3. Pg. 035: Sustainability Examination and Options in Consideration of I-976 Budget 
     Impacts – DISCUSSION  (LeeAnn) 
4. Pg. 038: Surplus IT Equipment – Resolution No. 2020-06 – ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
5. Pg. 045: Supplemental Leave Policy (POL-312) – Resolution No. 2020-07 –  
    ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
6. Pg. 051: Ecolane Software License and Services Agreement for Scheduling 
    Software – ACTIONABLE (Danette) 

 
INFORMATIONAL  
 Reports 

1. Pg. 067: Park and Ride Update 
2. Pg. 068: Management Reports 
 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 

COMMENTS BY BOARD 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  1



 

2 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 
 

 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

April 21, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
Mason Fire Protection District 1 

Fire Hall Conference Room 
331 North Finch Creek Road 

Hoodsport 
 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any type 
of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 in 
advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  2



1 

 

               

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting  
February 18, 2020 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 
 
 
OPENING PROTOCOL 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:00 p.m.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Wes Martin, Chair; Sharon Trask, Vice Chair; 
John Campbell, Kevin Dorcy, Matt Jewett, Randy Neatherlin, Deb Petersen, Kevin Shutty and 
Sandy Tarzwell. Quorum met.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Not Present: [None] 
 
Authority Non-voting Board Member Not Present: Greg Heidal, Business 
Representative, IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 
 
Citizen Advisor to the Board Present: John Piety 
 
Others Present:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board; Robert Johnson, Legal Counsel; 
LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager and Mike Ringgenberg, Operations 
Manager.  
 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 
 
Moved that the agenda for the February 18, 2020 Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular board 
meeting be approved. Shutty/Dorcy. Motion carried. 
 
INTRODUCTION OF NEW BOARD MEMBER – MATT JEWETT 
The Chair introduced MTA’s new Board member, Matt Jewett from Southside School District. 
Board member Jewett shared a bit of his experiences and how he came to be a Southside 
School District Board member. 
 
RECOGNITION 
LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager, briefly shared with the Board the recent All 
MTA meeting; 2019 overview, training; service and driver safety awards (more details under 
“Informational”). Additionally, she shared that Tracy Becht was nominated and chosen by the 
Employee Engagement Committee as Employee of the Year.  
 
CORRESPONDENCE – The Clerk read aloud the correspondence received by the Community 
Lifeline Staff, Volunteers and Guests.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  3



2 

 

               

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 4, as follows: 
 

1. Moved to approve the draft minutes of the MTA Board regular meeting of January 21, 
2020. 

 
2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for 

January 2020 as presented. 
 
3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of January 17, 

2019 through February 12, 2020 financial obligations on checks #33702 through 
#33797, as presented for a total of $720,527.50. 

 
4. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the Board members to serve 

on the Authority Board Committees as set forth in the agenda page. 
 
Neatherlin/Campbell. Motion carried. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. Appointment of Citizen Adviser to MTA Authority Board – Danette Brannin, General 

Manager, was out of town at a meeting, so the Clerk of the Board recapped the decision by 
the Board at its January meeting to table appointment of the Citizen Adviser to the Board. 
The Clerk also updated the Board that Mr. Farmer who had previously submitted his 
application, informed the Clerk that he was withdrawing his application as he felt the MTA 
Board already had a good and longstanding candidate for consideration.  Moved that the 
Mason Transit Authority Board reappoint citizen John Piety to serve as the non-voting citizen 
adviser to the Board with the term being January-December, 2020. Neatherlin/Shutty. 
Motion carried.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. MTA Sick Leave Policy (POL-310) – LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager, 

shared with the Board that the policy was updated to provide clarification to all employees 
so that they may understand the process and expectations as they are different from the 
WA Paid Sick Leave Policy. Moved that the MTA Board approve Resolution No. 2020-04 and 
the attached MTA Sick Leave Policy (POL-310). Shutty/Petersen. Motion carried. 

2. Change Order #2 – Roundabout Project – The Clerk reviewed the purpose for the 
change order which were relating to time and materials to restore and repair the access road 
used while clearing and installing the relocated gate, as the access road belonged to the 
property owner and was not MTA property. The Board had additional questions relating to 
this work order as they believed that while developing the contract, access to the road would 
have been anticipated and included in the contract. The Board requested that Ms. Brannin 
provide the Board with additional information relating to Change Order #2. 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  4



3 

 

               

3. Summer Youth Pass Interlocal Agreement 2020-2022 – Mike Ringgenberg, 
Operations Manager, shared with the Board that this agreement is up for renewal and is 
between Grays Harbor Transit, Clallam Transit, Jefferson Transit, Pacific Transit and Mason 
Transit. Since Intercity is now fare free, they are no longer a participant in the program.  
Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-05 authorizing 
the General Manager to sign the Summer Youth Pass Program Interlocal Agreement 2020-
2022. Campbell/Trask. Motion carried. 

4. Bus and Bus Livability Grant Opportunity – Ms. McNulty informed the Board that there 
is a federal grant opportunity for buses, bus facilities and bus equipment and that staff 
would like to take the opportunity to file an application for three 35’ coaches and six 
cutaways to replace vehicles that are beyond useful life. Ms. McNulty indicated that, despite 
anticipated budget impacts of I-976, this would be in the best interest of MTA as it would 
keep MTA’s fleet closer to MTA’s state of good repair goal and that encumbering $555,000 
for the match would not place MTA at risk of being able to fund other projects already 
committed. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board authorize the General Manager 
submit a grant application to WSDOT on behalf of MTA for three (3) 35’ coaches and six (6) 
cutaways to the Bus and Bus Facilities Program. Shutty/Neatherlin. Motion carried. 

 
INFORMATIONAL 
Ms. McNulty shared information with the Board regarding the annual meeting that was held on 
February 9 and that 74 of 80 employees were in attendance. She also described the focus of the 
“why of what we do,” as well as the group discussions of MTA’s vision and mission; positive 
relationships and the service awards.  
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – [No additions.] 
 
COMMENTS BY THE BOARD 
Vice Chair Trask was in attendance at a planning meeting for emergency preparedness and was 
happy to see Mike Ringgenberg in attendance.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – [None]. 
 
Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 4:43 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
 

Mason Transit Authority Board 
Regular Meeting 

March 17, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 
 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  5



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  6



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  7



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  8



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  9



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  10



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  11



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  12



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  13



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  14



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  15



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  16



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  17



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  18



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  19



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  20



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  21



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  22



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  23



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 1 – Discussion 
Subject:    MTA Vehicle Cleaning Schedule in Response to COVID-19 
Prepared by:  Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 17, 2020 
 
Background: 
 
 
The Executive Team of Mason Transit has been staying apprised of the transit industry 
response to the COVID-19 virus on a broad scale. At this point in time, MTA is doing the 
following to mitigate exposure to our ridership of the COVID-19 virus: 
 

• Continue with regular interior cleaning schedule. Interior of buses are 
thoroughly cleaned front to back every three weeks. 

• Continue with wiping down interior of buses every week and a half as well as 
clean as needed if a vehicle were to become dirtier than normal use. 

• Immediately respond to incidents such as spill, vomit, blood, etc. 
o In the case of an incident, the bus is pulled out of service as quickly as 

possible and not returned to service until cleaned. 
• All drivers have been supplied with disinfectant spray, paper towels and Clorox 

wipes to help combat any potential exposure to the virus. Drivers have been 
instructed to wipe down the interior of the vehicle between routes as they see 
fit (such as a passenger is coughing or sneezing a lot). 

• Informational signs from the CDC have been placed in all vehicles on how to 
protect oneself and methods to prevent spreading a virus. 

• A Rider Alert with information has been sent out regarding MTA’s cleaning 
practices and actions taken for combating the spread of the virus. It is also on 
our website, Twitter and Facebook. 

• Hand-sanitizer stations for the T-CC are on backorder for permanent installation. 
• MTA’s drivers have been provided with hand sanitizer. 
• Anytime the mechanics bring a bus into the shop, they wipe down the 

stanchions, handrails, handholds and any other areas that appear dirty. 
 
MTA continues to monitor the situation and will make any warranted changes as 
needed.  
 
 
Summary: Update on MTA response to COVID-19 and cleaning of vehicles for 
riders. 
 
 
 
  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  24



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Change Orders #3, 4 and 5 – Roundabout Project 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
The following describes each of the Change Orders pertaining to the Log Yard 
Road/SR 3 Roundabout: 
 
Change Order 3 
 
This CO is due to the delay in the right-of-way transition and approval of the WSDOT 
Construction Agreement. Active Construction had to demobilize and remobilize clearing 
subcontractors. The additional clearing required additional traffic control. 
 
Change Order 4 
 
WSDOT provided Hydraulic comments in late December after the contract had been 
awarded. The comments resulted in additional structures and upsizing of storm pipe. 
 
Change Order 5 
 
Belfair Water District is requiring MTA, as part of this project, to extend the existing 
water main 60 feet to the east to be outside the new pavement. 
 
 
 
Summary: Information provided regarding Change Orders #3, 4 and 5. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Not to Exceed $17,864.32 (Change Order 3) 
Not to Exceed $20,455.94 (Change Order 4) 
Not to Exceed $20,571.23 (Change Order 5) 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  25



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  26



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  27



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  28



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  29



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  30



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  31



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  32



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  33



March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  34



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item: New Business – Item 3 – Discussion 
Subject:   Sustainability Examination and Options in Consideration of 

I-976 Budget Impacts 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
MTA has set a 5-year sustainability goal as a practice for good financial stewardship and 
planning. The 5-year sustainability outlook has been updated and includes two 
scenarios to consider and discuss.  
 
The impacts of I-976 continue to be somewhat a mystery but we anticipated the impact 
of loss funding will occur in the next biennium. With that, staff is seeking direction from 
the Board and is asking the Operations/Maintenance and Finance Committees work with 
staff to create a plan on how best to position MTA for its future regarding service, 
recruitment practices and future grant funding that may or may not exist.  
 
Staff would ask that the Committees recommend a plan to the full board for discussion. 
 
 
Summary: 5-year sustainability outlook with impacts to MTA’s budget. 
 
 
 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  35



Projections Including State Dollars
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Sales Tax 4,054,264       4,175,892       4,301,169       4,430,204       4,563,110       4,700,003       

Operating Grant 3,049,288       3,105,274       3,161,260       3,224,485       3,353,464       3,487,603       
Fares 365,000          372,300          379,746          387,341          395,088          402,990          

Other Income 291,030          297,350          303,812          310,418          317,173          324,079          
Reserves Expended 130,406          254,771          387,824          522,715          601,333          521,137          

Total Operating Revenue 7,889,988       8,205,587       8,533,811       8,875,163       9,230,168       9,435,812       

Salaries and Benefits 6,223,621       6,472,566       6,731,469       7,000,728       7,280,757       7,571,987       
Fuel 377,450          392,548          408,250          424,580          441,563          459,226          

Vehicle/Facility Repair & Maintenance 325,354          338,368          351,903          365,979          380,618          395,843          
Insurance 242,605          252,309          262,401          272,897          283,813          295,166          

Miscellaneous 720,958          749,796          779,788          810,979          843,417          877,154          
Reserves Allocated -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Operating Expenses 7,889,988       8,205,587       8,533,811       8,875,163       9,230,168       9,599,376       

Net Operating Income (Deficit) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (163,564)         

Operating Reserves 2,287,780       2,033,009       1,645,185       1,122,470       521,137          -                   

2021-2025 Revenue Projections: 

Sales Tax revenue is conservatively projected to have a 3% growth year-over-year.

Operating Grant  revenue is based on the 2019-2021 and 2021-2023 grant awards. 
After these biennium, revenue is projected to grow by 4% year-over-year.

Fares are projected to increase by roughly 2% year-over-year. 

Other Income dips in 2020 due to the completion of the regional mobility grant, 
other revenues are projected to grow by 2% year-over-year.

Reserves Expended is to offset any potential operating losses. The offsets start in 
2020 and the reserve will be depleted partway through 2025. 

2021-2025 Expense Projections:

Salaries and Benefits will see a bump in 2020 due to adjustments made from the 
wage analysis conducted in 2019. Thereafter wages are projected to grow by 4% 
year-over-year.

All other expenses have been projected to increase by 4% year-over-year.

Reserves Allocated is funding set aside to offset any future Net Operating Deficits.

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Operating Reserves

41,992,761 

2,287,780 
163,564 

 -

 44,444,105

2021-2025

2021-2025 Break-Even

Funding Deficit

Reserves Expended

Operating Revenue

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  36



Projections Excluding State Dollars
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Sales Tax 4,054,264        4,175,892        4,301,169        4,430,204        4,563,110        4,700,003        

Operating Grant 3,049,288        2,257,158        1,465,027        1,494,328        1,554,101        1,616,265        
Fares 365,000           372,300           379,746           387,341           395,088           402,990           

Other Income 291,030           297,350           303,812           310,418           317,173           324,079           
Reserves Expended 130,406           1,102,887        1,184,893        -                    -                    -                    

Total Operating Revenue 7,889,988        8,205,587        7,634,647        6,622,291        6,829,472        7,043,337        

Salaries and Benefits 6,223,621        6,472,566        6,731,469        7,000,728        7,280,757        7,571,987        
Fuel 377,450           392,548           408,250           424,580           441,563           459,226           

Vehicle/Facility Repair & Maintenance 325,354           338,368           351,903           365,979           380,618           395,843           
Insurance 242,605           252,309           262,401           272,897           283,813           295,166           

Miscellaneous 720,958           749,796           779,788           810,979           843,417           877,154           
Reserves Allocated -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Operating Expenses 7,889,988        8,205,587        8,533,811        8,875,163        9,230,168        9,599,376        

Net Operating Income (Deficit) -                    -                    (899,164)          (2,252,872)      (2,400,696)      (2,556,039)      

Operating Reserves 2,287,780        1,184,893        -                    -                    -                    -                    

2021-2025 Revenue Projections: 

Sales Tax revenue is conservatively projected to have a 3% growth year-over-year.

Operating Grant  revenue is based on the 2019-2021 and 2021-2023 federal grant 
awards (no state dollars). After these biennium, revenue is projected to grow by 4% 
year-over-year.

Fares are projected to increase by roughly 2% year-over-year. 

Other Income dips in 2020 due to the completion of the regional mobility grant, 
other revenues are projected to grow by 2% year-over-year.

Reserves Expended is to offset any potential operating losses. The offsets start in 
2020 and the reserve will be depleted at the beginning of 2022. 

2021-2025 Expense Projections:

Salaries and Benefits will see a bump in 2020 due to adjustments made from the 
wage analysis conducted in 2019. Thereafter wages are projected to grow by 4% 
year-over-year.

All other expenses have been projected to increase by 4% year-over-year.

Reserves Allocated is funding set aside to offset any future Net Operating Deficits.

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Operating Reserves

34,047,554 

2,287,780 

8,108,771 

 -

 44,444,105

2021-2025

2021-2025 Break-Even

Funding Deficit

Reserves Expended

Operating Revenue

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  37



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 4 – Actionable 
Subject:    Surplus IT Equipment 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
Attached is a list of IT items no longer in use or useful. It is recommended to surplus 
the assets listed. 
 
 
 
Summary: Approve surplusing certain identified IT equipment. 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
TBD. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-06 regarding 
the disposal of the assets as set forth in Exhibit A to that resolution.  
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  38



LIST OF ITEMS FOR SURPLUS 
 

1 of 2| P a g e  
 

Description Asset Tag Serial Number 
Dell P1913t N/A CN-0PUGRC-74445-386-237M 
HANNS-G JW199DPBUF100 N/A 651GT3JY13177 
HANNS-G JC199DPBUFB00 N/A 706GJ3JY02671 
HP Compaq 1825 N/A TW241PB645 
Dell P1913t 18-2494 CN-0PVGRC-74445-4CP-AL1M 
Hp Compaq 1825 N/A HU246PA124 
HANNS-G JW199DPBUF100 N/A 651GT3JY09324 
Dell P1914Sf 16-1476 CN-0YGP39-72872-46C-EDPL 
HANNS-G JC199DPBUFB00 N/A 706GJ3JY02669 
Dell G2410t N/A CN-0U334K-74445-99P-205U 
HP P9615A N/A CNP518Z0WX 
HP Compaq 1825 18-2544 TW241PB694 
Hp Compaq 1825 N/A TW240PA135 
HP Compaq 1825 N/A TW241PB665 
HP Compaq 1825 N/A TW241PB507 
Hp Compaq 1825 N/A TW241PB696 
HP W2082a N/A CNC621NSVB 
HP PE1230 N/A CNB43301XT 
HP Compaq LE2202X 16-1943 3CQ2282BV6 
Dell E1910Hc N/A CN-0D176P-64180-0C9-23US 
Dell P1014SF N/A CN-0YGP39-72872-4BM-DK0L 
Dell E1910Hc N/A CN-0D176P-64180-0C9-27MS 
Dell P2214Hb 16-1628 CN-0KW14V-74261-392-262L 
Dell P2214Hb 16-1629 CN-0KW14V-74261-392-269L 
HP LaserJet 3050 N/A CNBJ166268 
HP 1040 Fax 16-1661 CN62MAJ4MG 
Box of Misc Cables    
Dell Optiplex 9020 16-1565 4SX4FZ1 
HP Compaq Pro 6300 SFF 19-2690 2UA2480PXK 
Dell Optiplex 9020 16-1559 4SR2FZ1 
Dell Vostro 260s 18-2488 B97RVR1 
Dell Optiplex 9020 16-1599 4SR3FZ1 
Dell Vostro 270s 1451 8TQ9DX1 
Dell Optiplex 380 16-1459 GGC4BP1 
Dell Optiplex 9020 16-1625 4SX3FZ1 
Dell Vostro 270s 18-2553 DQNZNV1 
Dell Vostro 270s 16-1635 6F6MFX1 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  39



LIST OF ITEMS FOR SURPLUS 
 

2 of 2| P a g e  
 

 

Dell Vostro 270s 16-1649 6F5MFX1 
Dell Vostro 260s 1310 BQ96VR1 
Dell Vostro 270s 16-1511 6GQLFX1 
HP Compaq Elite 8300 16-1502 2UA2410WLC 
HP Compaq Elite 8300 16-1532 2UA2461F95 
Dell Optiplex 380 16-2377 DFS6CP1 
Dell Optiplex 380 11-1274 4FBMNN1 
Dell Vostro 460 16-1807 4DHYJS1 
Dell Vostro 260s 11-1299 BQB0VR1 
Dell Optiplex 9020 19-2688 HQY7P22 
Dell Optiplex 9020 18-2543 3928D42 
Dell Vostro 270s 18-2534 GVVBFX1 
Dell Vostro 270s 18-2535 GVPDFX1 
Dell Vostro 260s 16-1414 B98RVR1 
HP Compaq Pro 6300 SFF 18-2529 2UA2480PXL 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 16-1907 GMPQ842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 16-1909 GM8Q842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 16-1911 GN1Q842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 16-1913 GMXM842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 16-1915 J4HN842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 18-2477 4DR4FY1 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 18-2478 GMTL842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 18-2479 GMPP842 
Dell Optiplex 380 1275 4FBLNN1 
Dell Optiplex 9020 16-1942 4SX2FZ1 
Dell Vostro 270s 16-2359 6F3KFX1 
   
   
   
   

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  40



Resolution No. 2020-06 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority has adopted policies to ensure the fair, 
impartial, responsible and practical disposition of surplus property of MTA and such 
policies ensure that the public shall receive the greatest value for such items; and 

WHEREAS, certain equipment as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto have been deemed 
no longer useful; and 

WHEREAS, there is value to these items and by the disposal of such assets, MTA will be 
able to use the funds for other current needs of MTA; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the items identified on Exhibit A attached hereto be deemed surplus and that the 
items to be sold pursuant to MTA’s disposition of surplus property policy. 

 
Adopted this 17th day of March, 2020. 

 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  41



Resolution No. 2020-06 Page 2 of 2 
 

______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  42



EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06 
LIST OF ITEMS FOR SURPLUS 

 
Description Asset Tag Serial Number 

Dell P1913t N/A CN-0PUGRC-74445-386-237M 
HANNS-G JW199DPBUF100 N/A 651GT3JY13177 
HANNS-G JC199DPBUFB00 N/A 706GJ3JY02671 
HP Compaq 1825 N/A TW241PB645 
Dell P1913t 18-2494 CN-0PVGRC-74445-4CP-AL1M 
Hp Compaq 1825 N/A HU246PA124 
HANNS-G JW199DPBUF100 N/A 651GT3JY09324 
Dell P1914Sf 16-1476 CN-0YGP39-72872-46C-EDPL 
HANNS-G JC199DPBUFB00 N/A 706GJ3JY02669 
Dell G2410t N/A CN-0U334K-74445-99P-205U 
HP P9615A N/A CNP518Z0WX 
HP Compaq 1825 18-2544 TW241PB694 
Hp Compaq 1825 N/A TW240PA135 
HP Compaq 1825 N/A TW241PB665 
HP Compaq 1825 N/A TW241PB507 
Hp Compaq 1825 N/A TW241PB696 
HP W2082a N/A CNC621NSVB 
HP PE1230 N/A CNB43301XT 
HP Compaq LE2202X 16-1943 3CQ2282BV6 
Dell E1910Hc N/A CN-0D176P-64180-0C9-23US 
Dell P1014SF N/A CN-0YGP39-72872-4BM-DK0L 
Dell E1910Hc N/A CN-0D176P-64180-0C9-27MS 
Dell P2214Hb 16-1628 CN-0KW14V-74261-392-262L 
Dell P2214Hb 16-1629 CN-0KW14V-74261-392-269L 
HP LaserJet 3050 N/A CNBJ166268 
HP 1040 Fax 16-1661 CN62MAJ4MG 
Box of Misc Cables    
Dell Optiplex 9020 16-1565 4SX4FZ1 
HP Compaq Pro 6300 SFF 19-2690 2UA2480PXK 
Dell Optiplex 9020 16-1559 4SR2FZ1 
Dell Vostro 260s 18-2488 B97RVR1 
Dell Optiplex 9020 16-1599 4SR3FZ1 
Dell Vostro 270s 1451 8TQ9DX1 
Dell Optiplex 380 16-1459 GGC4BP1 
Dell Optiplex 9020 16-1625 4SX3FZ1 
Dell Vostro 270s 18-2553 DQNZNV1 
Dell Vostro 270s 16-1635 6F6MFX1 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  43



EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06 
LIST OF ITEMS FOR SURPLUS 

 

 

Dell Vostro 270s 16-1649 6F5MFX1 
Dell Vostro 260s 1310 BQ96VR1 
Dell Vostro 270s 16-1511 6GQLFX1 
HP Compaq Elite 8300 16-1502 2UA2410WLC 
HP Compaq Elite 8300 16-1532 2UA2461F95 
Dell Optiplex 380 16-2377 DFS6CP1 
Dell Optiplex 380 11-1274 4FBMNN1 
Dell Vostro 460 16-1807 4DHYJS1 
Dell Vostro 260s 11-1299 BQB0VR1 
Dell Optiplex 9020 19-2688 HQY7P22 
Dell Optiplex 9020 18-2543 3928D42 
Dell Vostro 270s 18-2534 GVVBFX1 
Dell Vostro 270s 18-2535 GVPDFX1 
Dell Vostro 260s 16-1414 B98RVR1 
HP Compaq Pro 6300 SFF 18-2529 2UA2480PXL 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 16-1907 GMPQ842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 16-1909 GM8Q842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 16-1911 GN1Q842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 16-1913 GMXM842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 16-1915 J4HN842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 18-2477 4DR4FY1 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 18-2478 GMTL842 
Optiplex 3030 AIO Series 18-2479 GMPP842 
Dell Optiplex 380 1275 4FBLNN1 
Dell Optiplex 9020 16-1942 4SX2FZ1 
Dell Vostro 270s 16-2359 6F3KFX1 
   
   
   
   

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  44



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 5 – Actionable 
Subject:    COVID-19 Supplemental Leave Authorization Policy (POL-312)  
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 17, 2020 
 
Background: 
 
The recent Emergency Proclamation 20-05 of Washington State Governor Jay Inslee 
relating to COVID-19 and other governmental actions in its effort to control the spread 
the virus is the purpose for the request of a supplemental leave authorization policy. 
This policy is distinct from and in addition to other types of leave pursuant to MTA 
policy. 
 
We believe that providing this supplemental leave authorization will help to reduce the 
risk of transmission of COVID-19 in our workplace and community by increasing the 
likelihood that employees or those that reside with someone who exhibits any of the 
Common Symptoms (as defined in the policy) will remain away from the workplace until 
they no longer have the potential to infect others. 
 
This supplemental leave authorization strictly relates to the COVID-19 and outlines the 
circumstances in which an employee may use the supplemental leave and when they 
may return to work after there are no longer any Common Symptoms. 
 
This policy has been reviewed by legal counsel. 
 
 
Summary: Approve COVID-19 Supplemental Leave Authorization Policy (POL-
312) 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
TBD. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-07 and the 
attached COVID-19 Supplemental Leave Authorization Policy (POL-312).  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  45



COVID-19 Supplemental Leave Authorization  Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Title: Covid-19 Supplemental Leave Authorization 
Number: 3XX12 
Effective: March 17, 2020 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-XX07 

 
POL-XX COVID-19 SUPPLEMENTAL LEAVE AUTHORIZATION 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular full-time employees and 
Primary Worker/Driver employees. 

 
1.0 Purpose 

1.1 On February 29, 2020, Washington State Governor Jay Inslee issued Emergency 
Proclamation 20-05, as follows: “On January 21, 2020, the Washington State 
Department of Health confirmed the first case of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) 
in the United States in Snohomish County, Washington…I, Jay Inslee, Governor of 
the state of Washington, as a result of the above noted situation, and under 
Chapters 38.08, 38.52 and 43.06 RCW, do hereby proclaim that a State of 
Emergency exists in all counties in the state of Washington…” COVID-19 is a 
respiratory disease caused by a new virus called SARS-CoV-2. The most common 
symptoms of the disease are fever, cough, and shortness of breath. Most people 
with COVID-19 will experience mild disease but some may get sicker and may need 
to be hospitalized. COVID-19 may result in death among vulnerable members of the 
population. 

 
1.2 MTA provides paid time off for vacation, personal days and sick leave to all full-time 

employees and personal days and sick leave to those in the Worker/Driver 
classification as described in the Employee Handbook and Policies.  

 
1.3 The purpose of this COVID-19 Supplemental Leave Authorization is to provide MTA 

employees with supplemental leave that is distinct from and in addition to other 
types of leave pursuant to MTA policy. It is in the best interest of all MTA employees 
to avoid the spread of COVID-19 in our workplace and in our community to the 
extent possible. Accordingly, MTA’s intent in providing this supplemental leave is to 
reduce the risk of transmission of COVID-19 in the workplace by increasing the 
likelihood that employees who exhibit any of the common symptoms of COVID-19, 
namely fever, cough, or shortness of breath (the “Common Symptoms”), or who 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  46



COVID-19 Supplemental Leave Authorization  Page 2 of 3 

 

 

reside with someone who exhibits any of those symptoms, will remain away from 
the workplace until they no longer have the potential to infect others. 

 
2.0 Supplemental Leave Authorization 
 

2.1 Effective immediately, all MTA employees are eligible for COVID-19 Supplemental 
Leave (“Supplemental Leave”), subject to the terms and conditions set forth 
herein. Regular full-time employees are eligible for eighty (80) hours of 
Supplemental Leave; Worker/Drivers are eligible for fifty (50) hours of 
Supplemental Leave. The amount of Supplemental Leave granted under this 
Authorization may be increased, at the discretion of the General Manager and 
notification to the Board.  

 
2.2 An employee is authorized to use Supplemental Leave for the following reasons: 

 
o An absence resulting from the employee having tested positive for COVID- 

19, or exhibiting any of the Common Symptoms of COVID-19; 
 

o An absence resulting from the employee residing with someone who 
has tested positive for COVID-19 or who exhibits any of the Common 
Symptoms; 

 
o When the employee’s child’s school or place of care has been closed for 

reasons related to COVID-19, in which case Supplemental Leave may be 
used until alternate care is established; 

 
o When the employee’s workplace has been closed by order of a public 

official or by the General Manager for reasons related to COVID-19. 
 

2.3 Any employee who experiences any of the Common Symptoms while at work shall 
inform his or her supervisor immediately and shall leave the workplace. In that 
event, the employee shall receive paid administrative leave for the balance of that 
workday. Any employee who experiences any of the Common Symptoms before 
reporting to work, or who resides with someone who exhibits any Common 
Symptoms, shall remain at home and shall contact his or her supervisor as soon as 
possible. 

 
2.4 Any employee who reports any of the Common Symptoms or tests positive for 

COVID-19, or who resides with someone who exhibits any Common Symptoms or 
tests positive, will be required to remain at home or under prescribed care until 72 
hours after the symptoms get better or, if under medical care, until medically 
cleared to return to work. For regular full-time employees who are absent from 
work under these circumstances, the first eighty (80) hours of leave will be 

Commented [DB1]: This would cover all employees for 2 
weeks. Worker/Drivers work 5 hours a day. 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  47



COVID-19 Supplemental Leave Authorization  Page 3 of 3 

 

 

charged to Supplemental Leave. For Primary Worker/Drivers who are absent from 
work under these circumstances, the first fifty (50) hours of leave will be charged 
to Supplemental Leave. Any absence beyond that which is covered by 
Supplemental Leave will be charged to vacation or sick leave according to the 
policies set forth for such usage before leave without pay is granted. Supplemental 
Leave will be compensated in the same manner as MTA calculates wages for other 
leave classifications. 

 
2.5 Supplemental Leave may be used in increments of no less than eight (8) hours 

for regular full-time employees and five (5) hours for Primary Worker/Driver 
employees. 

 
2.6 If the need for Supplemental Leave is foreseeable, the employee must provide 

reasonable advance notice to his or her supervisor. If the need is not foreseeable, 
the employee must notify his or her supervisor as soon as practicable. 

 
2.7 Supplemental Leave shall be available until the General Manager, in sole 

discretion, determines that this Authorization is no longer needed. Any unused 
Supplemental Leave shall be forfeited and will not be paid out upon termination 
of this Authorization. 

 
2.8 Unused Supplemental Leave will not be paid out upon separation from employment. 
 
2.9 This Authorization addresses absences for reasons associated with preventing or 

containing the spread of COVID-19 and does not cover absences for any other 
reason. The terms and conditions set forth herein do not replace, amend, or 
supplement any terms or conditions of employment stated in any other MTA policy 
or in the Collective Bargaining Agreements between MTA and the International 
Association of Aerospace and Machinist, Local Lodge 160. 

 
2.10 MTA may require an employee who uses Supplemental Leave to provide 

certification that the Supplemental Leave was used for a proper purpose as set forth 
in this Authorization. Any absence that is improperly charged to Supplemental Leave 
will be charged to that employee’s vacation or appropriate sick leave, or, if none, as 
unpaid leave, and any unused Supplemental Leave will be forfeited. 

 
2.11 Supplemental Leave is not eligible for donation under MTA’s Shared Leave 

program. 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  48



Resolution No. 2020-07 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-07 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A COVID-19 SUPPLEMENTAL LEAVE AUTHORIZATION 

POLICY (POL-312). 

 
WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board desires to provide MTA employees 

with supplemental leave that is distinct from and in addition to other types of leave 
pursuant to MTA policy; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of all MTA employees to avoid the spread of 
COVID-19 in our workplace and our community to the extent possible; and 

WHEREAS, MTA’s intent in providing this supplemental leave is to reduce the risk of 
transmission of COVID-19 in the workplace by increasing the likelihood that employees who 
exhibit any of the Common Symptoms (as defined in the policy) will remain away from the 
workplace until they no longer have the potential to infect others; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the COVID-19 Supplemental Leave Authorization Policy (POL-312), which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein, be established and adopted. 
 

Adopted this 17th day of March, 2020. 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  49



Resolution No. 2020-07 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  50



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 6 – Actionable 
Subject:   Ecolane Software License & Services Agreement for Scheduling 

Software 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 17, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
As part of our bus technology implementation, MTA desired new scheduling software. 
Our current software for scheduling Dial-a-Ride is outdated and no longer supported. 
 
MTA had previously contracted with Doublemap and Doublemap contracted with 
Ecolane as a third party to provide scheduling software. The move from our current 
software to Ecolane was almost done. All that was left of the implementation was 
training for the Comm Center staff and go live. MTA canceled the contract with 
Doublemap for breach, and therefore the contract between Doublemap and Ecolane 
was canceled as well, leaving us without the new scheduling software needed. 
 
Since the implementation was so far along, legal advice was sought as to whether we 
could consider Ecolane as a sole source. Approval was given. 
 
Attached is the agreement between Ecolane and MTA for consideration. 
 
 
Summary: Approve the General Manager to sign the Software License & 
Services Agreement with Ecolane. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$86,424.80 initial licenses and equipment; $33,996 annual licensing per year for years 
2-5. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the General Manager to sign the 
Software License & Services Agreement with Ecolane.  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  51



1 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

ECOLANE USA INC. 
SOFTWARE LICENSE & SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS SOFTWARE LICENSE & SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of March 
9, 2020 by and between Ecolane USA Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Licensor”), located at 940 West Valley Road, 
Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087 and Mason Transit Authority (“Licensee”) located at 790 East Johns Prairie Road, 
Sheldon, WA 98584. Licensor and Licensee may be referred to individually as a “Party,” or together as the “Parties.” 

1. AGREEMENT DEFINITIONS 
1.1 “Confidential Information” means information relating to or disclosed in the course of, or in 

connection with this Agreement, which is, or should be reasonably understood to be, confidential or 
proprietary to a Party, including, but not limited to, information concerning such Party’s business, 
products, services, content, finances, subscribers, source code, tools, protocols, product designs and 
plans, customer lists and other marketing and technical information, the existence of any business 
discussions, negotiations or agreements between the Parties, the terms of this Agreement, and any 
other unpublished information.  

1.2 “Contractor” means a non-employee individual or business hired by Licensee to perform on 
Licensee’s behalf certain functions permitted hereunder.  

1.3 “Documentation” means Licensor’s User Guides and Training Manuals and any other written 
materials provided by Licensor for aid in the use and operation of the Licensor Software that Licensor 
indicates in writing as constituting “Documentation” under this Agreement. 

1.4 “Intellectual Property Rights” means all patents, inventions, trademarks, service marks, 
copyrights, moral rights, trade secrets, database rights, rights in designs, know-how, confidential 
information and all or any other intellectual or industrial property rights whether or not registered or 
capable of registration, and whether subsisting in the United States or any other part of the world, 
together with all or any goodwill relating to the same. 

1.5 “License Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3. 

1.6 “Licensor Software” means Licensor’s Ecolane DRT software, in object code format, licensed to 
Licensee hereunder and, in the event, Licensee purchases applicable license, all updates and 
upgrades provided under the Support Services, if any. The “Mobile Module” shall be deemed part of 
the Licensor Software for all purposes.  

1.7 “Mobile Module” means the portion of Licensor Software that is installed on a mobile unit. 

1.8 “Support Services” means Licensor’s support and maintenance services described on Exhibit B.  

1.9 “Support Period” means the time period during which Licensee is current in license fees. 

2. SOFTWARE LICENSE 
2.1 License Grant. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, Licensor grants to Licensee a non-

exclusive, limited, non-transferable, without right to sublicense, license to use and otherwise access 
the Licensor Software, Mobile Module, and Documentation, all for Licensee’s own internal business 
uses. Under the foregoing license, Licensee may either (a) install and/or host the Licensor Software 
and/or Mobile Module on Licensor’s provided hardware, as agreed by the Parties under a separate 
written installation and hosting agreement that shall include a right for Licensee to terminate, at its 
convenience, Licensor’s hosting of the Licensor Software without unreasonable penalties for early 
termination, (b) install and/or host the Licensor Software and/or Mobile Module on Licensee’s, or its 
designated Contractor’s, hardware in accord with Sections 2.2, 2.3, and 2.4, or (c) any combination 
of the foregoing (a) and (b). 

2.2 License Restrictions; Licensee Rights and Obligations.  
  Licensee shall not:  

a. modify, make derivative works of, reverse engineer, disassemble, decompile, or otherwise 
attempt to discover the source code for the Licensor Software,  

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  52



2 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

b. allow the Licensor Software to be combined with or become incorporated in any other computer 
programs, absent Licensor’s written consent,  

c. distribute, encumber, sell, rent, lease, sublicense, or otherwise transfer rights to the Licensor 
Software (except as expressly permitted hereunder),  

d. only install and use the Mobile Module on a mobile unit approved by Licensor, 

e. remove or alter any trademark, logo, copyright or other proprietary notices, legends, symbols or 
labels in the Licensor Software, or  

f. Except as set forth in Sections 2.3, 2.4, or as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by Licensor, 
permit any third party to use the Licensor Software or Documentation or use the Licensor 
Software or Documentation on behalf of or for the benefit of any third party in any way 
whatsoever. 

2.3 Copies; Records. Licensee may make only so many copies of the Mobile Module as are reasonably 
necessary for operational security and for its permitted use hereunder. Licensee shall supervise and 
control and maintain accurate and complete records regarding the use and location of the Mobile 
Module Software and Documentation, and the access to the Licensor Software.  

2.4 Limited Use by Contractors. Licensee may allow its Contractors to exercise the rights granted 
hereunder on behalf of Licensee and solely for Licensee’s benefit, provided that (a) Licensee ensures 
that such Contractors use the Licensor Software only in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
and (b) Contractors are subject to confidentiality obligations substantially similar to Licensee’s 
obligations herein. Licensee shall be fully responsible for any breach of this Agreement caused by 
Contractors.  

3. DELIVERY ACCESS. On or before the 120 days following the date hereof, Licensor shall (a) deliver the number 
of copies of Software and Documentation, all as may be identified on Exhibit A, by electronic means, and/or (b) 
provide access to the Licensor Software. The first date of such delivery or access shall be referred to herein as 
the “License Date”. Licensor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to make the Licensor Software available 
for the hours and days as described in Exhibit A beginning on the License Date. Scheduled maintenance done 
by Licensor will be done outside Licensee’s scheduled hours of availability as identified in Exhibit B.  

4. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS. Licensor (and/or its affiliates or vendors) retain all right, title and interest in and to the 
Licensor Software and Documentation, including, without limitation, all Intellectual Property Rights related thereto 
and all modifications thereof. The Parties acknowledge each other’s trademark rights, and except as permitted 
by Section 15.11, neither Party shall use the other Party’s trade name or trademarks in any manner whatsoever 
absent the other Party’s prior written consent. Nothing in this Agreement assigns any rights, title or interest in any 
Licensor’s (and/or its affiliates’ or vendors’) Intellectual Property Rights to Licensee. 

5. SERVICES. 
5.1 Support Services. Licensor shall provide Support Services commencing on the License Date on the 

terms and conditions set forth on Exhibit B. 

5.2 Installation Assistance, Training or Other Services. If Licensee and Licensor have agreed that 
Licensor will provide Licensee with any installation assistance of Mobile Modules, training or other 
services, the terms and conditions of such services will be identified on Exhibit A or another Exhibit 
to this Agreement. 

5.3 Custom Development. If Licensor agrees to perform any customized software development work 
for Licensee that the parties intend for Licensee to own, Licensee will have no such ownership rights 
unless the parties mutually execute a written addendum to this Agreement that fully satisfies the 
following conditions: (i) the scope and description of the mutually agreed work product is described, 
and (ii) the addendum includes an express statement that such work product is “intended to be a 
work made for hire for, and owned by, Licensee”. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any content of 
any such addendum, in no case whatsoever does Licensor assign or otherwise transfer to Licensee 
any right, title or interest in or to Licensor Software, Documentation or any other preexisting 
Intellectual Property Rights of Licensor. 

6. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF LICENSEE   

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  53



3 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

6.1 Licensee shall (a) promptly provide Licensor and its authorized agents with such information and 
assistance as may be reasonably requested in order to carry out its obligations hereunder, (b) without 
charge, provide suitable office accommodation, materials, equipment and support services (including 
use of telephone and support services) reasonably requested in connection with performance of any 
services at Licensee’s premises ordered by Licensee under Section 5, (c) procure all necessary rights 
from third parties (including intellectual property licenses in relation to Licensee’s computer software) 
which are from time to time required in order for Licensor to provide services in an authorized and 
legal manner, and (d) with ten (10) days advance notice, permit Licensor and its authorized 
representatives to enter on to Licensee’s premises or mobile units where the Mobile Modules or 
Documentation are located or from where the Licensor Software is accessed or services are provided 
in order to verify Licensee’s compliance with the terms of this Agreement. In connection with this 
review, Licensor may inspect records directly related to Licensee’s performance of this Agreement 
or use of Licensor Software or Documentation kept by or on behalf of the Licensee and make copies 
of the same. 

7. FEES AND PAYMENT. 
7.1 Payment. Licensee agrees to pay Licensor the fees specified in Exhibit A in accordance with the 

payment schedules set forth in Exhibit A. The Parties agree to the allocation of the fees and payments 
to software, service (if any) and hardware (if any) as designated on Exhibit A. Licensee shall pay 
Licensor’s invoices in U.S. dollars to Licensor’s address set forth on Exhibit A no later than thirty (30) 
days following the receipt of a written invoice. Any overdue payments will bear interest at the lesser 
of (i) one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or (ii) the maximum rate allowed under applicable 
law until the overdue payment and accrued interest are fully paid. 

7.2 Taxes. Licensee shall be responsible for any and all sales, use, excise, value-added or similar taxes 
that may be due under this Agreement and Licensor will use commercially reasonable efforts to 
identify any applicable taxes on its invoice to Licensee. Licensee will pay applicable taxes on the 
invoice or, in lieu of the payment of any such taxes; Licensee may provide Licensor with a certificate 
acceptable to the taxing authorities exempting Licensee from payment of these taxes. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall Licensee be obligated to pay any tax paid or owed 
on income or net worth of Licensor or paid for Licensor’s doing business in any particular locality or 
jurisdiction. 

8. WARRANTIES. 

8.1 Licensor Software Warranties. With respect to the Licensor Software, Licensor warrants that: (a) 
the tangible media on which the Mobile Module resides, if applicable, shall be free of material defects 
in workmanship, design and material, (b) neither the Licensor Software nor the Documentation 
infringes, misappropriates or otherwise violates any U.S. Intellectual Property Rights of any third 
parties, (c) the Licensor Software does not contain any computer viruses, Trojan horses, time bombs, 
cancel bots or other computer programming routines that are intended to detrimentally interfere with, 
surreptitiously intercept or expropriate any system, data or personal information, and (d) Licensor 
Software will operate substantially in accordance with the Documentation. The warranties set forth in 
Section 8.1 (“Software Warranties”) shall survive for a period of three hundred sixty-five days (365) 
days following the License Date (“Warranty Period”). In the event of a breach of a Software Warranty 
reported to Licensor in writing during the Warranty Period, Licensee’s sole remedy for such breach 
shall be to have Licensor use commercially reasonable efforts to promptly correct, replace or provide 
a work around for such error or failure, at no charge to Licensee, or in Licensor’s discretion, provide 
an equitable refund to Licensee. The Software Warranties and remedies apply only to the most recent 
version of the Licensor Software, and shall not apply to any breach, fault or error that has been 
caused by Licensee’s failure to use the Licensor Software in accordance with the Documentation 
requirements, any misuse, corruption, or abuse of, or modification to, the Licensor Software by 
Licensee or any use of the Licensor Software with any software or equipment not approved in 
advance in writing by Licensor. 

8.2 Licensor Services Warranties. Licensor warrants that all services that are performed under this 
Agreement will be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner by qualified personnel, and 
Licensor has the required skills and experience to perform such services and such warranties shall 
survive for thirty days following performance of the services. Licensee’s sole remedy for breach of a 
warranty in Section 8.2 shall be to notify Licensor of any breach within ninety (90) day following 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  54



4 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

performance of the services and have Licensor use commercially reasonable efforts to promptly 
correct, replace or provide a work around for such breach, at no charge to Licensee, or in Licensor’s 
discretion, provide an equitable refund to Licensee. 

8.3 Licensor General Warranties. Licensor represents and warrants that Licensor owns, or has all 
necessary rights to, the Licensor Software and Documentation, and has all necessary rights and 
authority to grant the rights granted hereunder to Licensee and to carry out its obligations hereunder.  

8.4 Mutual Warranties. Each Party represents and warrants to the other Party: (a) such Party’s 
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement have been authorized by all necessary 
corporate action, do not violate in any material respect the terms of any law, regulation, or court order 
to which Licensor is subject, do not violate the terms of any material agreement to which Licensor is 
a party, and are not subject to the consent or approval of any third party, (b) this Agreement is the 
valid and binding obligation of such Party, enforceable against Licensor in accordance with its terms, 
except as may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar laws relating to 
creditors’ rights generally, or general equitable principles, (c) such Party is not subject to any pending 
or, to such Party’s knowledge, threatened litigation or governmental action which could interfere with 
such Party’s performance of its obligations hereunder, and (d) such Party has secured or shall secure 
all material permits, licenses, regulatory approvals and registrations to perform its obligations 
hereunder. 

8.5 Disclaimer of Warranty. EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN SECTIONS 8.1 to 8.4, LICENSOR DOES 
NOT MAKE, AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS, ALL OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, 
WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF 
TITLE, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ACCURACY, 
NONINFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTIES’ RIGHTS, AND SECURE, ERROR-FREE OR 
UNINTERRUPTED OPERATION. 

8.6 Limitation of liability. NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY LOSS OF 
PROFITS, LOSS OF BUSINESS, LOSS OF USE OR DATA, INTERRUPTION OF BUSINESS, OR 
FOR INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, EVEN 
IF THE PARTY SHALL HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, OR 
FOR ANY CLAIM AGAINST THE OTHER BY ANY THIRD PARTY, UNLESS SUCH CLAIMS ARISE 
OUT OF THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS UNDER SECTIONS 10.1 AND 10.4 OR ARE DUE TO A 
BREACH OF CONFIDENTIALITY OBLIGATIONS UNDER SECTION 9. LICENSOR’S LIABILITY TO 
LICENSEE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT EXCEED AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE 
AMOUNT ACTUALLY PAID BY LICENSEE TO LICENSOR PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT 
DURING THE TWELVE-MONTH PERIOD PRECEDING THE DATE OF ANY CLAIM. A “CLAIM” IS 
WHEN ANY OCCURRENCE GIVING RISE TO LICENSOR LIABILITY HEREUNDER IS KNOWN 
TO LICENSEE OR SHOULD BE KNOWN. 

Licensee acknowledges and agrees that (i) it is solely responsible for providing and ensuring the 
proper training of its drivers, owners or operators in the operation of the motor vehicle or motor 
vehicles (i.e. any automotive machinery utilized for the transport of persons or goods in which Ecolane 
Products has been incorporated or installed) in conjunction with the use or operation of Licensor 
Software and Mobile Modules (the “Ecolane Products”), (ii) Licensor shall not be liable to Licensee 
for any claim or action including costs arising out of the use or misuse of any motor vehicle operated 
by the Licensee in conjunction with or separate from the use of the Ecolane Products, including any 
personal injury or property damage claim or action, and Licensee shall defend, indemnify and hold 
Licensor harmless from any such claim or action, and (iii) Licensee shall include this paragraph, or 
the substance thereof,  in any third party agreements pursuant to which Ecolane Products are 
provided to a third party. 

Licensee agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Licensor shall not be liable to Licensee 
or any third party for any special, indirect or consequential damages of any kind arising directly or 
indirectly from the use of or inability to use Ecolane Products including any claim for lost revenue, 
profit, data, privacy, security, interruption or loss of service or use of the products, or any loss of 
business even if Licensor has been advised of the possibility of such damages.  

9. CONFIDENTIALITY. 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  55



5 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

9.1 Confidentiality Obligations. Each Party acknowledges that Confidential Information may be 
disclosed to the other Party during the course of this Agreement. Each Party agrees that, during and 
following the term of this Agreement, it shall hold in strict confidence the other Party’s Confidential 
Information and will take reasonable steps, at least substantially equivalent to the steps it takes to 
protect its own proprietary information, to (a) prevent use of the other Party’s Confidential Information 
for any purpose other than to carry out its rights and obligations hereunder, and (b) prevent the 
disclosure of the other Party’s Confidential Information, other than to its employees or Contractors 
who must have access to such Confidential Information for such Party to exercise its rights and 
perform its obligations hereunder and who each agree to be bound by agreements with a duty of 
confidentiality no less protective of confidential information than provided herein. 

9.2 Exclusions. The Parties’ obligations set forth in Section 9.1 shall not apply with respect to any portion 
of the Confidential Information that: (a) was in the public domain at the time it was disclosed to or 
observed by the receiving Party; (b) entered the public domain through no fault of the receiving Party; 
(c) is rightfully received by the receiving Party from a third party without a duty of confidentiality; (d) 
is independently developed by the receiving Party without reference to or incorporation of the other 
Party’s Confidential Information; (e) is disclosed in accordance with the state Public Information Act,    
except that the receiving Party will disclose only such information as is legally required and will use 
reasonable efforts to obtain confidential treatment for any Confidential Information that is so disclosed 
and will provide the disclosing Party notice of such possible disclosure prior to disclosure in order to 
allow an opportunity for the disclosing Party to contest such disclosure; or (f) is disclosed with the 
other Party’s prior written approval. 

9.3 Return of Confidential Information. Each Party agrees to return to the other Party or, at the request 
and instruction of the disclosing Party, destroy, and certify that it has destroyed, all material 
embodying Confidential Information (in any form or medium and including, without limitation, all 
summaries, copies and excerpts of Confidential Information) at any such time as the disclosing Party 
may so request. 

10. INDEMNIFICATION. 
10.1 Indemnification by Licensor. Licensor shall to the extent allowed by state law indemnify, defend 

and hold harmless Licensee, and its officers, directors, employees and agents, from and against any 
and all claims made or threatened by any third party and all related losses, expenses, damages, 
costs and liabilities, including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses incurred in investigation or 
defense (“Damages”), to the extent such Damages arise out of or relate to a third-party claim that the 
Licensor Software, Documentation or services provided by Licensor hereunder, or Licensee’s use of 
the same in accordance with this Agreement, infringe, misappropriate, or otherwise violate any third 
party’s U.S. Intellectual Property Rights. Licensor’s indemnity obligation shall not extend to claims 
based on an unauthorized modification, combination or use of the Licensor Software by Licensee. 

10.2 Notification of 3rd Party Claims. Licensor will promptly notify Licensee of any threat, warning, claim 
or action against Licensor or suppliers, that could have an adverse impact on Licensee's use of the 
Licensor Software. 

10.3 Remedies. If Licensor informs Licensee or Licensee determines that it must discontinue use of the 
Licensor Software, the Documentation, or any service furnished under this Agreement because of an 
existing or anticipated claim, or adjudication, that the Licensor Software, Documentation, or service 
infringes, misappropriates or otherwise violates any intellectual property right of a third party, 
Licensor, at its own expense and in its reasonable discretion, shall  either: (a) secure for Licensee 
the right to continue using the Licensor Software, Documentation, or service; (b) replace or modify 
the Licensor Software, Documentation, or service to make it non-infringing; provided, however, that 
such modification or replacement shall not degrade the operation or performance of the Licensor 
Software, Documentation, or service; or if Licensor determines (a) or (b) to be commercially 
unreasonable, then (c) refund to Licensee any unamortized portions of the fees paid by Licensee, 
based on a straight line amortization over the initial term of this Agreement. 

10.4 Indemnification by Licensee. Licensee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Licensor, and 
their officers, directors, employees, and agents (“Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all 
claims made or threatened by any third party and all Damages, to the extent such Damages arise 
out of or relate to (a) Licensee’s breach of the obligations assumed under this Agreement, or (b) an 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  56



6 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

infringement or related claim that unauthorized modification, combination or use of the Licensor 
Software made by Licensee. 

10.5. Defense and Settlement. A Party seeking indemnity (“Indemnified Party”) shall provide the other 
Party (“Indemnifying Party”) prompt notice of any such claim made against it for which it is entitled to 
indemnity hereunder. Each party shall cooperate with the other party and in the defense of any such 
claim, suit or proceeding, including appeals, negotiations and any settlement or compromise thereof, 
provided that Indemnifying Party shall control the defense, negotiations and settlement or 
compromise thereof and shall keep the Indemnified Party informed of the proceedings and review 
and consider input from the Indemnified Party; provided, that Indemnified Party shall be given the 
right to consent to the terms of any settlement or compromise with respect to such matter, and such 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld by Indemnified Party. 

11. EXPORT CONTROL. The Parties agree that Licensee shall not, and shall not permit, use of the Licensor 
Software and Documentation outside of the United States and Canada. To the extent Licensee seeks to use 
Licensor Software and Documentation outside of the United States and Canada, Licensee shall be solely 
responsible for full compliance with all export and import laws and restrictions and regulations of any United 
States or foreign agency or authority and shall obtain and bear all expenses relating to any necessary licenses 
and/or exemptions with respect to the same. 

12. NOTICES. Any notice, approval, request, authorization, direction or other communication under this 
Agreement will be given in English in writing and will be deemed to have been delivered and given for all 
purposes (i) on the delivery date if delivered by confirmed facsimile; (ii) on the delivery date if delivered 
personally to the party to whom the same is directed; (iii) one business day after deposit with a commercial 
overnight carrier, with written verification of receipt; or (iv) five business days after the mailing date, if sent by 
U.S. mail, return receipt requested, postage and charges prepaid, or any other means of rapid mail delivery 
for which a receipt is available. Licensor’s and Licensee’s Addresses for receipt of notices are provided on 
Exhibit A. 

13.  TERM AND TERMINATION.  
13.1 Term. Unless terminated earlier in accordance with Section 13.2, this Agreement shall remain in 

effect for the applicable term or terms set forth on Exhibit A, as the term or terms may vary for the 
license to the Licensed Software and Documentation and the Support Services or other services. 
The term of the agreement will commence upon contract signing and will continue for as long as 
license fees are maintained. In the case where the base agreement expires and neither party has 
extended the said base agreement, this agreement will renew automatically each year, until a new 
agreement is signed. 

13.2 Termination; Effect of Termination. A Party may terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration 
of an applicable term as follows: (a) if the other Party breaches a material obligation under this 
Agreement, and fails to cure such breach within thirty (30) days from the date it receives from the 
non-breaching Party a written notice of the breach and a demand for cure, (b) immediately by written 
notice if the other Party (i) materially breaches Section 9, or (ii) files a petition in bankruptcy, makes 
a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, has a receiver appointed or applied for it, or 
winds up or liquidates. Upon termination, Licensee shall return the Licensor Software and 
Documentation to Licensor, and pay all accrued but unpaid fees and expenses, provided, this shall 
in no way limit any legal or equitable remedies that Licensor may be entitled to. Any fees paid by 
Licensee for services note performed by Licensor as of the termination date will be refunded, within 
90 days following termination.  

14. SURVIVAL. Sections 1, 2.2, 4, 8.5, 8.6, 9, 10, 12, 13, 14 and 15 shall survive termination of this Agreement 
for any reason.  

15. GENERAL 
15.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including the Exhibits) constitutes the entire agreement 

between the Parties concerning the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and 
contemporaneous proposals, agreements and communications, whether oral or written, between the 
parties relating to the subject matter hereof, and all past courses of dealing or industry custom. This 
Agreement may be amended only by a writing signed by the duly authorized representatives of both 
Parties.  

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  57



7 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

15.2 Independent Contractors. In performing this Agreement, the Parties are independent contractors, 
and nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed or implied to create an agency, 
partnership or employer and employee relationship between the Parties. Except as expressly set 
forth in this Agreement, at no time shall either Party make commitments or incur any charges or 
expenses for, or in the name of, the other Party. 

15.3 Assignment. Neither Party may assign this Agreement or any right, interest or benefit under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party, such consent not to be unreasonably 
withheld; provided that in the event of a change in control of a Party, except for a change of control 
of Licensee to a direct or indirect competitor of Licensor, either Party shall have the right to assign 
this Agreement to a successor who acquired substantially all of the assets or equity of such Party. 
Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement will be fully binding upon, inure to the benefit of and be 
enforceable by the Parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensor may subcontract the performance of any or all of its 
obligations under this Agreement, provided it remains directly liable to Licensee. 

15.4 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. The Parties acknowledge that the covenants set forth in this 
Agreement are intended solely for the benefit of the Parties, their successors and permitted assigns. 
Nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, shall confer upon any person or entity, other 
than the Parties, their successors and permitted assigns, any legal or equitable right whatsoever to 
enforce any provision of this Agreement. 

15.5 Severability/Waiver. If any provision in this Agreement should be held illegal or unenforceable by a 
court having jurisdiction, such provision shall be modified to the extent necessary to render it 
enforceable without losing its intent or severed from this Agreement if no such modification is 
possible, and other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. A waiver by 
either Party of any term or condition of this Agreement or any breach thereof, in any one instance, 
shall not waive such term or condition or any subsequent breach thereof. 

15.6 Dispute Resolution. In the event any controversy or claim arises in connection with any provision of 
this Agreement, or in connection with the rights or obligations of the Parties to this Agreement, the 
Parties shall try to settle their differences amicably between themselves by referring the disputed 
matter to the appropriate executives at the Director level or higher for discussion and resolution. 
Either Party may initiate such informal dispute resolution by sending written notice of the dispute to 
the other Party, and as soon as possible but no later than fifteen (15) days after such notice such 
representatives of the Parties shall meet for attempted resolution by good faith negotiations. If such 
representatives are unable to resolve such dispute within thirty (30) days of initiating such 
negotiations, either Party may seek the remedies available to such Party under law. The parties agree 
that the State of Tennessee shall be the venue where disputes are settled.  

15.7 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws 
of the State of WashingtonTennessee, without regard to its conflicts of law principles or to the United 
Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods. For purposes of all claims 
brought under this Agreement, each Party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of 
the state and federal courts located in State of WashingtonTennessee. Notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary set forth in this Agreement, the Parties agree that any threatened or actual violation of 
Sections 2, 4 or 9, will cause irreparable harm and injury to the Licensor and Licensor shall be entitled, 
in addition to any other rights and remedies it may have at law or in equity, to an injunction enjoining 
and restraining Licensee from doing or continuing to do any such act and any other violations or 
threatened violations of this Agreement, and for purposes of such injunction, each Party hereby 
irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction and proper venue of the state and federal courts 
located in State of WashingtonTennessee. 

15.8 Force Majeure. Neither Party will be liable for, or be considered to be in breach of or default under 
this Agreement on account of, any delay or failure to perform as required by this Agreement as a 
result of circumstances beyond the reasonable control of such Party including acts of God, acts of 
any governmental or supra-national authority, war or national emergency, riots, civil commotion, fire, 
explosion, flood, epidemic, lock-outs (whether or not by that Party), strikes and other industrial 
disputes (in each case, whether or not relating to that Party’s workforce), restraints or delays affecting 
shipping or carriers, inability or delay in obtaining supplies of adequate or suitable materials and 
currency restrictions. 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  58



8 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

15.9 Headings; Interpretation. The headings in this Agreement are inserted merely for the purpose of 
convenience and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of the Agreement. The expression 
“person” means any individual, entity, partnership, association, governmental body or the like. The 
words “include”, “includes”, “including” and “included” will be construed without limitation. This 
Agreement shall be construed fairly according to its terms, without regard to the identity of the drafter 
of any provision in the Agreement. 

15.10 Counterparts; Facsimile. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed to be an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement. 
Facsimile signatures shall be deemed original signatures.  

15.11 Publicity. Neither Party will make any public statements regarding the existence of this Agreement 
nor the relationship described herein, without the prior written consent of the other Party, except as 
required by law or as otherwise provided for herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensor shall 
have the right to use Licensee’s name in customer lists that identify a substantial number of Licensor’s 
customers, and Licensor shall provide a copy of any such listing to Licensee to the extent distributed 
to any third parties. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  59



9 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has caused this Software License & Services Agreement to be executed by 
its authorized representative to be effective as of the date hereof. 

Ecolane USA Inc.  [LICENSEE, STATE] 
Signature:  Signature:   

Printed Name:  Steve Ross    Printed Name: Danette Brannin               

Title:    CEO                Title:                 General Manager             ___     

Date:        Date:       

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  60



10 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

EXHIBIT A 

License Terms 
This Exhibit A is made part of and incorporated in that certain Software License & Services Agreement (“Agreement”), 
dated March 9, 2020 by and between Ecolane USA Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Licensee” or “Ecolane”), and 
Mason Transit Authority (“Licensee” or “Customer”). 
A. Pricing/Payment 

Fee for license to Licensor Software: $86,424.80. 

Annual Maintenance and Hosting fee, beginning in Year 2: $33,996.00 

Additional licenses may be procured through Ecolane by written agreement at current list pricing at the 
time of purchase. 

Pricing Terms:  75% due at system set up 

   20% due at completion of training 

5% due at system acceptance 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  61



11 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

 

Price Quote -Revised
Ecolane  |  940 W Valley Rd, Suite 1400 |  Wayne, PA 19087

844-ECO-LANE |  610-312-0033  |  SALES@ECOLANE.COM

DATE TRANSIT AGENCY NAME ADDRESS CITY, STATE ZIP
3/6/2020 Mason Transit Authority 790 East Johns Praire Road Sheldon, WA  98584

PROJECT ATTENTION PHONE E-MAIL
DRT Danette Brannin 360-432-5750 dbrannin@masontransit.org 

BD DIRECTOR E-MAIL PHONE PRICING TERMS
Priscilla Vargas priscilla.vargas@ecolane.com 206-799-9574 75% due at system set up

DAYS PRICING IS VALID FOR DATE PRICE EXPIRES
20% due at completion of training

90 6/4/2020 5% due at system acceptance

Initial Licenses

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

20 Ecolane DRT/MDT Software License (per vehicle) (unlimited users) $4,000.00 $80,000.00

1 Map data for Service Area - up to 5 contiguous counties Included Included

1 Self Service Trip Bookings App with credit card capabilities (flat rate) (3rd party charges 
will apply) $29,995.00 $29,995.00

1 Pre/Post Trip functionality on MDT (flat rate) $19,995.00 $19,995.00

1 SMS Text Messaging Arrival Notification License (Includes 10k of SMS Text msg credit to 
start that never expires)  (flat rate) $19,995.00 $19,995.00

1 Self-Service Website (flat rate) $19,995.00 $19,995.00

Initial licenses subtotal $169,980.00

Discount 74%

Initial licenses cost with discount applied subtotal $44,194.80

Additional items

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

20 8" Android Tablet, similar to a Samsung Galaxy Tab A, 8" (+$100 per for 10" tablet) (if 
agency purchases separately, price will be reduced) $294.00 $5,880.00

20
Vehicle Mounting Hardware (RAM-101U, Otter box type case, and vehicle charger) 
(additional $100 per for locking mount hardware) (if agency purchases separately, price 
will be reduced)

$199.00 $3,980.00

1 SMS Text message credit bundle (10,000/bundle) (Never expires until used up 
completely) $1,500.00 $1,500.00

Additional items subtotal $11,360.00

Services

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

11 Remote set up of Ecolane DRT and MDT software (8 hr. work days), includes remote 
training and project management $990.00 $10,890.00

12 Onsite Training/Go-live days (8 hr. work days) $990.00 $11,880.00

3 Travel for # of Onsite Trips indicated (Onsite Survey, Training, and Go-live) $2,700.00 $8,100.00

Services subtotal $30,870.00

Annual Licensing Year 1

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

20 All Inclusive Annual Licensing plan includes support for all licenses listed above and all 
items below (per vehicle): Included Included

Hosting Costs Included

Server Maintenance Included

24/7/365 Support via web, email and phone Included

Map Updates Included

Upgrades** and Updates Included

Free monthly webinar training and access to Aha! Idea portal to help drive 
functionality for new development for Ecolane and its customers Included

Annual licensing year 1 subtotal Included

SUBTOTAL $86,424.80

TOTAL SYSTEM 
PURCHASE COSTS FOR 

 
$86,424.80

  
                 

 

              
      

 

 

      

 

  

             
        

    

                    

   

            

           

          

        

        

       

        

            

        

           

                
         

     
            

                    

                       
                               

    
                                   

 
                          

                      

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  62



12 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

B. Term of License; Term of Support 
  The term of the Software License shall be from the License Date through 5 full years of use.  

  The terms of the Support Services shall be from the License Date through 5 full years of use. 

  The term outlined above will renew annually on the license date above, unless renegotiated by either or 
both parties with a minimum of 60 days’ notice.  

Ecolane deploys a learning management system for agency staff training.  By signing of this agreement, 
you agree to mandate that your staff attend and test on the key concepts of the Ecolane software. 

C. Delivery & Access Terms: 
  Delivery of the System. Licensor commits to delivery of the Licensor Software in the timeframe set forth 

in Section 3 and it shall be deemed fully delivered when the Licensor Software conforms to the 
Documentation in all material respects; provided, if there are issues preventing Licensor Software from 
conforming to the Documentation in all material respects, Licensor will seek to remedy the issues as soon 
as commercially practicable, and provided, further, if Licensee uses the Licensor Software for 14 days in 
a live environment, then any such issues shall be deemed waived. 

  System Access. Standard hours of Licensee operations are from 6 AM to 8 PM, Monday through Friday, 
Pacific standard time zone.  The Licensor Software is expected to be available for use from one hour 
before to one hour after the standard hours; provided Mobile Modules are expressly excluded from the 
Licensor Software downtime counting, meaning that any downtime experienced by a Mobile Modules is 
not counted as system downtime. The downtime means a “Critical” level problem as defined in the 
Support Services. 

D. Addresses for Notices: 
 For Ecolane (“Licensor”): 

Ecolane USA Inc.  

940 West Valley Road,  

Suite 1400  

Wayne, PA 19087 

Licensor has right to change the address for notifications by notifying Licensee by the means set up in Section 
12 of this contract.  

  
 For Mason Transit Authority (“Licensee”):  

Attention: Danette Brannin  

790 East Johns Prairie Road 

Sheldon, WA  98584 

 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  63



13 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

EXHIBIT B 
SUPPORT SERVICES/SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT 

This Exhibit B is made part of and incorporated in that certain Software License & Services Agreement (“Agreement”), 
dated March 9, 2020 by and between Ecolane USA Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Licensor” or “Ecolane”), and 
Mason Transit Authority (“Licensee” or “Customer”). 
Overview 
Ecolane’s Support Services are set forth in this Service Level Agreement. During the term of this Agreement, Ecolane 
will provide the following support services if the Licensor Software does not operate substantially in accordance with 
the Documentation. Support will be handled via phone, email, and the internet when Ecolane support personnel are 
not at the customer site. The infrastructure for this plan is a request tracking system used to facilitate the process of 
tracking and resolving customer needs and issues. Every service request is logged into the system and is accessible 
by Ecolane support representatives. 

Assignment of Service Request Severity 
When a customer has opened a service request and reaches customer support, the Ecolane associate will assess 
the severity of the request based on the customer's description of the issue. The severity of the service request will 
be recorded at support.ecolane.com. 

Table 1 below describes the definitions used in identifying and assigning a severity to the customer's reported issue. 

Severity Criteria 

Critical 

• Customer's production system is down 
• Ecolane product is unusable resulting in total disruption of work or other critical 

business impact.  
• No workaround is available 

High 
• Major feature/function failure  
• Operations are severely restricted 
• A workaround is available 

Medium 
• Minor feature/function failure  
• Product does not operate as designed, minor impact on usage, acceptable workaround 

deployed 

Low • Minor issue 
• Documentation, general information, enhancement request, etc. 

Response and Resolution Targets 
Ecolane Customer Support response and resolution targets are described below: 

Response: When Ecolane Customer Support receives a support request, a support engineer will provide feedback 
to the customer that the request has been logged and assigned to the appropriate resource. The exact response 
(described below) will vary depending on the support method used by the customer, and the response time will 
commence as soon as the support request is received and Ecolane has a clear understanding, the ability to reproduce 
or identify from the system log the issue at hand (support request) 

Web: Ecolane will assign a status and severity and update the service request to let the customer know the request 
has been received. A Service Request ID # will be assigned immediately when the support request is submitted from 
the Web. 

E-Mail: An automated e-mail reply will be sent immediately after receiving the e-mail request. Ecolane will reply to 
the e-mail with a Service Request ID # and a time frame when to expect a response or contain a request for additional 
information. 

Phone: Ecolane will answer the call or respond to a call that has gone to voice mail, document product specific 
information in the service request, provide the customer with a Service Request ID # and begin support activities. 
Including a roll back to an earlier version if possible and it is likely to solve the issue. Ecolane staff will be available 
for contact between 8 AM and 5 PM EST. 

Resolution: An answer, fix or a satisfactory workaround to the support request 

Solution: The long-term resolution to the support request, issue or question. 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  64



14 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

Severity Target 
Response  

Target 
Resolution  

Solution (1 or more of the following) 

Critical 1 Business 
Hours 

Within 4 hours 
from actual 
response 

• Satisfactory workaround is provided 

• Product patch is provided 

• Fix incorporated into future release 

• Fix or workaround incorporated into Solution Library 

High 8 Business 
Hours   

Within 36 hours 
from actual 
response 

• Satisfactory workaround is provided 

• Product patch is provided 

• Fix incorporated into future release 

• Fix or workaround incorporated into Solution Library 

Medium 24 Business 
Hours 

Within 15 
Business Days 

• Answer to question is provided 

• Satisfactory workaround is provided 

• Fix or workaround incorporated into Solution Library 

• Fix incorporated into future release 

Low 72 Business 
Hours 

Within 30 
Business Days 

• Answer to question is provided through FAQ, Knowledge Base, or 
through trained customer subject matter experts (SME) 

• Fix or workaround incorporated into Solution Library 

 

  

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  65



15 
Ecolane USA, Inc. 

Ecolane USA, Inc. 940 West Valley Road, Suite 1400, Wayne, PA 19087          610-312-0033 
4821-6909-6038.1 

Assignment of Service Request Status 
When a customer contacts Ecolane Customer Support and requests help to resolve a question or an issue, a service 
request is opened. The following table describes the possible status that may be assigned to a service request. 

Status Criteria 

Open A service request has just been submitted. It may be assigned to an individual or a queue. 
Ecolane has not responded yet to customer. 

Responded Ecolane has responded to the customer regarding the receipt of the service request and is 
actively pursuing a resolution. 

On Hold Ecolane is not actively working on the resolution of the service request. Generally, this is due to 
information pending from the submitter of the service request. However, service requests may 
be put on hold for other reasons as well.  

More Info 
Required 

Ecolane is waiting for more information to be able to clearly understand, have the ability to 
reproduce or identify from the system log the issue at hand. 

Closed Closed status reflects that: 

• The customer and the Ecolane agree that a satisfactory resolution has been provided, 
or 

• The customer understands that there is not a solution to the issue at hand, and the 
issue is not a result of a product defect, or 

• Ecolane has made multiple attempts to contact the customer that opened the log and 
the customer has not responded.  

Electronic service requests (Web, e-mail) may be closed when Ecolane Professional Services 
has provided an electronic reply with a high degree of confidence that the reply will resolve the 
issue or answer the question. 

Networking, hardware and installed software at the site are the sole responsibility of the customer and are not covered 
in Support Services. Customer misuse or unauthorized use of Licensor Software or Mobile Modules also is not 
covered in Support Services. 

 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  66



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 1 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 17, 2020 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress.  
 
Permitting: Building Permit Plans were submitted 1/8/20 and are currently being 
reviewed. Plans were also submitted to Belfair Water District for review 1/3/20. 
 
Site permits are all approved for current construction. The SEPA determination was 
made on 4/12/19.  
 
Log Yard Road/SR 3 Roundabout Project:  

• Construction 
o ACI is progressing construction 

 Upcoming construction includes: 
• Truck Aprons and Center Island 
• Paving of frontage roads 

 
Belfair Park and Ride Project Advertisement: The project was advertised for 
construction 2/24/20. This date will allow incorporating of Mason County permit 
comments as an addendum. Bid open date has been changed to 3/20/2020. 
 
Pear Orchard Construction: This project is pending further contamination investigation 
by the city. 
 
Construction Documents: Construction Document/Bid Packages are ready for Pickering 
Road and Cole Road.  
 
Other progress: MTA and SCJ are in coordination with WSDOT and Parsons-Scarsella to 
evaluate the cost of the new Shelton-Matlock park and ride and to prepare a cost 
sharing agreement. A Local Agency Participating Agreement for Work by WSDOT in 
currently in review at WSDOT. MTA Legal has reviewed. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  67



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 19, 2020 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  68



  

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board March 17, 2020 
 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  69



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|3
/1

7/
20

20
  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board March 17, 2020 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
 
Park & Ride Development:  

• The bid for the North Mason Park & Ride site was released February 24. We will be opening bids 
March 20 at 11:00am at Johns Prairie. 

• Please see Park & Ride Informational page for more details. 
T-CC Parking Lot:  Construction on the T-CC Parking Lot began March 2, with an expected time frame of 
completion by April 30.  
EDC:  

• Met with Jennifer Baria, Executive Director. 
• Attended monthly EDC Board Meeting.  

PRTPO: Attended PRTPO meeting. 
WSTIP: Attended the following meetings: 

• Coverage Review Committee 
• Prepared for Emerging Risk & Opportunities Committee and met with Member Services Manager on 

MTA assessment. 
• Monthly Executive Committee. 
• Governance Policy Committee. 
• Emerging Risk & Opportunities Committee. 

Grant Application for Vehicles: 
• Attended webinar on applying for FTA 5339(b) Bus and Bus Facilities.  
• Prepared grant application. 
• Coordinated with Tracy on Letters of Support. 

External Activities: 
• Attended the Transit Bus Summit in Austin, TX. The Summit was a great opportunity to meet with other 

transit leaders across the United States and participate in roundtable topics. It was also an 
opportunity to learn about new and existing products from vendors that serve the transit industry. 

• Attended North Mason Chamber of Commerce Gala. 
• Attended Leadership Breakfast for the Governor’s Committee on Disability Issues and Employment. 

Internal Activities: 
• Board Orientation with Matt. 
• Met with Marshall on the T-CC Parking Lot project for coordination. 
• Met with Operations Manager on results of the discussion at the Governor’s Committee on Disability 

Issues and Employment. 
• Reviewed sustainability outlook with Finance. 
• Met with Managers to outline a plan for the coronavirus. 
• Demo with UniteGPS to look at their subscription service for Automatic Vehicle Locator. 
• Met with Employee Engagement Committee.  
• Attended webinar from the FTA on the coronavirus. 
• Met with Patty Wagon to discuss transportation options. 
• Participate in weekly SMTA Legislative calls. 
• Various staff meetings. 

 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  70



 

2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
3/

17
/2

02
0 

 

Board Assistance, Awareness and Support: 
Bus Technology: We struggled with the vendor for nearly two years for the contract to be fulfilled. When the 
timeline continued to move, I had to make an ultimatum that if one more timeline was missed, we would 
cancel the contract for breach. We have canceled and are working through the details of a refund and starting 
the process over.  

COVID 19: As you can imagine, this is taking much time and energy to ensure staff and riders are protected 
from the spread of COVID 19 to the extent possible. Managers and I have met to discuss strategies and 
scenarios of “what ifs.” We will continue to keep our eye on the situation and be ready to respond as needed. 
Mike has reached out to Emergency Management to see what ways we might be of assistance. I will continue 
to keep the board apprised of situations relating to the virus.  

Funding: The Supplemental Transportation budget has been passed and the multi-modal fund is relatively 
intact through June 30 ,2021. I had hoped funding in the Connecting Washington for our Park & Ride project in 
the 2021-23 biennium would be moved up into the 2019-2021 biennium. Unfortunately, as part of ensuring 
funding in the multi-modal account for this biennium, the state is using project underruns and such to bridge 
the shortage from the impact of I-976.  

TEAM UPDATES 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
HR Support   

• Participated with the Employee Engagement Committee to review employee survey information 
received from All-MTA meeting. 

• Continued working to implement the new integrated Performance Review program. 
• Provided support for several employees for FMLA & fit for duty cases. 
• Attended American Public Transportation Association (APTA) transit related Covid-19 informational 

webinar. 
• Provided training to Operations Supervisors to ensure complete understanding of the newly approved 

MTA Sick Leave Policy. 

Wellness 
• Facilitated monthly Wellness Committee meeting. The committee is doing an excellent job coming up 

with creative ways to provide awareness, motivation and behavior change to promote wellness across 
the agency and into people’s personal lives.  

• We are waiting for AWC to release data for the number of enrolled staff in 2020.  This is an essential 
standard to achieve WellCity designation.  We had great participation from staff in registering to 
participate while attending the All-MTA meeting. The biggest obstacle to achieving WellCity in the past 
has been participation. We are excited for the level of interest in the re-energized wellness program. 

Recruiting 
• Currently no open positions. 

Administrative Functions 
• Finalized and submitted annual NTD report. 
• Attended WSTIP Emerging Risk & Opportunity Committee meeting. 
• Visited Intercity Transit for presentation on scan and toss digital record retention. 
• Reviewed sustainability assumptions with Danette prior to informational update to the board. 
• Annual report preparation is well underway. 
• Drug and Alcohol, WSTA HR & WSTA Finance quarterly committee meetings all cancelled due to 

concerns over Covid-19. 
 

MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 
 
External Activities: 

• I attended the Centralia College Diesel advisory Committee meeting. Discussion topics included 
curriculum, Work Study program and declining enrollment. 

T-CC Facility: 
• Conference Room: About 76 people utilized the conference room for various functions in February.  

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  71



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|3
/1

7/
20

20
  

• Kitchen: Kitchen numbers were up in February as Shelton School District began a series of cooking 
classes for S.S.D. staff. These classes attracted around 60 future chefs. 

• Gym: February events in at the T-CC this month resulted in 1,578 visitors. CHOICE PE attendance 
came in at 563 students for February classes. Over 370 pickle ball players participated in the Shelton 
Parks and Recreations program this February. MTA hosted our annual “All-Staff” meeting that 
welcomed over 90 employees for our yearly get together. Thank you, Tracy Becht, Mike Morrison and 
Steve Weisenbach for all your hard work! We hosted a Celebration of Life that drew over 150 people 
from the community. Our new 4-H Archery program on the 2nd and 4th Fridays of each month hosted 
42 archers participating in the program.  Special Olympics Basketball players finished up their season 
with 75 athletes visiting the T-CC. We hosted the United Way Charity auction that welcomed almost 
200 Valentine’s day bidders. South Mason Youth Soccer Club held their awards banquet in the gym 
that attracted at least 75 young athletes. 1578 people utilized the gym in February. 

• Operations: Supported Trina G., Joseph H., and John M., with OP’s issues. Coordinated with Operations 
ticket office employees for lunch and shift coverages. 

 
Projects/Purchases 
• The 5-year elevator, fire alarm and sprinkler services were performed.  
• Parking lot construction commenced, and lot procedures/schedules confirmed with T-CC staff, tenants, 

and operations supervisors. 
 
Johns Prairie and Belfair Building Projects/Purchases/Maintenance: 

• Septic issues have plagued us this month; however, all repairs have been performed and things are 
flowing again. 

• We are busy painting and reorganizing offices in the administration area. 
• Evaluating and obtaining estimates for fall protection equipment. 
• Performing restroom repairs for Belfair building. 

 

Vehicle Projects/Purchases/Maintenance:  
• Testing: UniteGPS equipment for fixed route bus tracking and scheduling. 
• Mini Cutaway: The mini is currently in service and is well received form the drivers. The graphics will be 

installed by March 25. 
• Hybrid Buses: The hybrid buses are in service and are averaging over 10MPG, a similar bus in the 

same service is averaging 4.8 MPG.  The graphics will be installed soon. 
• Cutaways (9):.The cutaways are currently under construction at the Champion Plant in Michigan. We 

expect a delivery date in late April 
• Grants:  We have been obtaining bus and cutaway procurement estimates for the grant submittal. 

OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 
• Ridership:  Is UP, UP, UP!!  Our last Service Review Committee did a great job of crafting and 

recommending changes that took effect February 3. The changes increased our fixed route ridership 
8% and increased our DAR ridership by 8%.  These increases translate to 2,336 more riders on our 
fixed routes and 297 more riders on our DAR. (These ridership numbers are from January 2020 to 
February 2020). If we compare February 2019 to February 2020, we have increased ridership on our 
fixed routes by 10,491 riders and increased ridership by 1,681 riders in DAR.  (WHY? Snowmaggeden 
happened in February 2019).    

• Gillig Hybrid Buses:  Bus 860 & 861 were taken to Puget Sound Naval Shipyard for the security 
inspection to ensure they have no recording devices or cameras before they are allowed in the 
shipyard.  Lisa completed driver training on the new buses for all the worker/drivers. 

• Interagency Summit:  I attended the summit hosted by Twin Transit for south sound transit providers, 
transit partners, WSDOT and a few vendors. 

• Meetings: Attended the Town Hall meeting at PUD3 and the leadership breakfast for the Governor’s 
Committee on Disability Issues and Employment. 

• NTD:  Operations completed our pieces of the 2019 NTD. 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  72



 

4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
3/

17
/2

02
0 

 

• Outreach presentations:  During the month of February, Kathy conducted outreach events at:  
Veterans at Memorial Hall, League of Woman Voters, and the Steamboat Island Community Club 
annual meeting.  Kathy attended the following meetings:  Moving Mason Forward, TIP CAP monthly 
meeting, North Mason Chamber Gala, Opiate Stakeholders, and a Veterans Stand Down event. 

•  Safety Awards:  2019 Driver Safety Awards were presented at the February All Staff. 
•  Training:  Lisa conducted 2020 Defensive Driver/Pass refresher class for 14 drivers in February which 

completed this training for all 39 drivers in 2020. 
• Vanpool: Usage rate for February 2020 was 70%; 7 of 10 vans were in use.   

  

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  73



 
 5 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|3
/1

7/
20

20
  

 

 

 

2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 

March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  74



2020 Work Items Completed as 
of 3/13/2020

Quarterly Driver training and refresher training as required

Complete CAD/AVL/GPS installation

Change from flag stop to fixed stop in urban area of Shelton

Curbs or bollards at Johns Prairie

Purchase rain jackets

Manager or supervisor on-duty during service - Move Ops office

Ensure L & I safety compliance through training

Review WSTIP Best Practices for Safety

Define Safety Committee's purpose and direction

Review DAR services and hours for efficiency and availability

Expand Zipper route time to 8:00am-5:00pm √

Seek Pilot opportunities and funding

Continue review of Comp Service Review √

Conduct outreach for all service changes

Improve passenger amenities 

Plan for 2021 service adjustments due to impact of funding

Benchmark route performance and monitor low-performing routes

Procurement training for Public Works projects √

Prepare for I-976 impacts

Create needed financial policies or manual

Ensure compliance of grant contracts

Review 5-year sustainability plan √

Prepare for Paid Family Medical Leave rollout √
Maintain Fair Labor Standard Act compliance through updated 
training

Records Management - Network reorganization

Conduct Community Conversations to solicit input

Participate in community events

Promote City and County partnerships

Participate in outside committees, RTPO and boards

Participate in mentorship programs

Promote Volunteer Driver Program

Park & Ride project (through 2023)

Brand vehicles

Progression toward inclusion of electric vehicles

Improve communications through established methods

Incorporate wellness program and encourage participation

Promote skills and job knowledge

Bargain contracts for drivers and Comm Center

Employee Engagement committee 

Enhance meaningful employee recognition

Provide more Belfair interaction and oversight

Prepare a policy review schedule

Objective 4: Community Partnerships and Responsibility

Kathy is working on presentations to churches seeking VDP drivers. Staff talked to Patty Wagon to discuss 
forming a partnership so if we are short drivers we can get some assistance from them.

Graphics are being installed on the two new W/D hybrid buses on March 16 and 17. There will be one at the 
Board meeting.

New DAR hours started February 3, 2020. Monitoring will take place throughout 2020. Report of first month 
shows an increase of 8%. Will be conducting a survey on DAR.

Objective 3: Financial Stewardship

Staff attended training. Policy has been updated. Processes and forms have been created. Finance staff 
trained department heads.

We will begin to look at the financial impact as it appears the initiative will be upheld. 

The 5-year sustainability plan has been updated. Staff will be seeking input from the Board.

Policy has been created. Employees have been presented with information at the All-MTA Meeting.

The file structure has been planned and the IT Team is in the process of creating a new drive.

Zipper route time has been expanded.

Working on pilot route for Lakeland Village.
We have completed looking at recommendations from the Comp. Service Review. However, we will continue 
to use this document as a reference.
We did outreach on our current service changes - public meetings, direct communication with riders and a 
radio spot.

Completed the information center at the T-CC; working on new scheduling software that has an app

Objective 2: Effective Transportation Services

Working on logo to be placed on the jackets; will be using our WSTIP Safety Grant of $2,500 to purchase the 
rain jackets.

In process of moving Ops to T-CC. Furniture has been ordered. Move will happen March 23.

Progress

4 CPR Trainings; all drivers did 8 hours of refresher training on ADA callouts, Mindful Driving and 
PASS(wheelchair) Training. Vol. Driver trained and Worker/Driver

Letter of Termination has been sent; waiting refund and starting the process over. Testing with UniteGPS for CA          

Objective 1: Safe and Secure

Objective 5: Workplace Culture

The Employee Engagement Committee is working through a communication plan.

Mike, Kathy and Danette attended the Governor's Committee on Disability Issues and Employment.

Working with City on T-CC Parking Lot project

Danette: PRTPO, EDC, WSTIP. Kathy: Moving Mason Forward, TIP CAP, Opiate Stakeholders. LeeAnn: WSTIP. 
Marshall: Centralia College Diesel Advisory Committee.

No activities this month.

See Park & Ride informational page for update.

Kick off of Wellness Program was done at the All-MTA Meeting with the first wellness challenge. The 
committee has several activities planned.

Committee continues to meet. A survey was prepared for the All-MTA meeting and we had 78% participation. 
The next project to work on is a communication flow chart.
We have revised the employee recognition policy; have incorporated a safety bonus for drivers; are being 
mindful of showing appreciation. Transit Driver Appreciation Day is March 18.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020
March 17, 2020 Regular Board Mtg  75


	ADP5471.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	February 18, 2020
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS

	20200310SustainabilityProjectionsThru2025.pdf
	State and Fed
	Fed Only After Biennium

	ADP315F.tmp
	2.0 Supplemental Leave Authorization

	ADPBBF8.tmp
	ECOLANE USA INC.
	SOFTWARE LICENSE & SERVICES AGREEMENT
	Assignment of Service Request Severity

	ADP5F2F.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	Workplan Update 2020.pdf
	2020




